Caltech

California Institute of Technology Administrative Committee on Biosafety Minutes of the Institutional Biosafety Committee (IBC)

Date: June 3, 2025	Time: 2:30 PM	Location: Zoom Videoconference
Voting Members:	R. Ismagilov, L. Cai, M. Doshi, A. Aravin, A. Hoe	elz, W. Gao, A. Grossman, M. Barsever,
	K. Lencioni, C. Cortese, E. Hisserich	
Nonvoting:	G. Fisher-Adams, C. Suzuki, M. Hayashi	
Guests:	A. Teodor	
Other:	T. Cheung	

Called to order at 2:33pm

- 1. Announcements
 - A. Thank You: A. Aravin
 - B. Welcome New IBC Member: L. Cai
- 2. Old Business
 - A. Protocols Approved Pending Modification, Modification Complete

The following protocol was approved pending modifications at the April 10 meeting. The modifications have been completed and the protocols are approved:

Protocol:	24-299-A2	Amendment	Expiration Date:	4/12/2027
Title:	Membrane Protein Cha	racterization		
PI Name:	Clemons/Rees			
Modifications Completed: 5/30/2025				

The following protocol was approved pending modifications at the May 6 meeting. They modifications have been completed and the protocols are approved:

Protocol:	22-182-A7	Amendment	Expiration Date:	10/10/2025		
Title:	Modulation of the I Indications	Mammalian Nervous System for P	sychiatric and Neurolc	ogical		
PI Name:	Gradinaru					
Modificatio	Modifications Completed: 5/30/2025					



B. Protocols - Approved Pending Modification, Modification Pending

The following protocols were approved pending modifications at the May 6 meeting. The labs are still working on completing the modifications for validation from the BSO. If it is past the expiration date, all work on the protocol has ceased until the modifications have been completed.

Protocol:	25-065	De Novo	Expiration Date:	5/12/2025
Title:	Viral Vectors for	dissecting neural circuits for Social	Interactions	
PI Name:	Anderson			
Anticipated Completion: 7/1/2025				

Protocol:	25-261	De Novo	Expiration Date:	5/12/2025
Title:	Engineering and	evaluation of anti-viral therapeutics	s in vitro and in vivo	
PI Name:	Bjorkman		De Novo	
Anticipated Completion: 7/1/2025				

Protocol:	24-381-A2	Amendment	Expiration Date:	7/12/2027	
Title:	Identifying Phages	that Target Antibiotic-Resistant Ba	cteria		
PI Name:	Karthikeyan		Amendment		
Anticipated Completion: 7/1/2025					

3. New Business

A. Approval of Minutes: May 6, 2025

The May 6 meeting minutes were approved by a majority of the IBC. There was one abstention from a member who was not present at the May 6 meeting.

B. Occupational Health Updates

The BSO reported that there were no occupational health items to review at this time.

C. Protocols - Full Committee Review

In review of the following protocols, the IBC conducted a robust risk assessment to determine the appropriate biocontainment levels for the proposed research and to confirm that the research is compliant with the NIH Guidelines, as applicable.

Protocol:	25-265	De Novo	Expiration Date:	6/12/2025	
Title:	Neural crest develop	ment and evolution in vertebrates			
PI Name:	Bronner				
Brief Description of Project: Embryonic neural crest cells (NCCs), are a stem cell-like population unique					



to vertebrates that give rise to bones of the face, the peripheral nervous system, the enteric nervous system, and pigment cells, among many other cell types. To better understand vertebrate evolution and the role of neural crest in developmental disorders, we examine the development of NCCs in a variety of vertebrate species.

Biological Materials Review Summary: Work in the lab utilizes the following biological materials:

- 1. Animal models
- 2. Viral vectors (replication incompetent)
- 3. Cell lines (human and chicken)
- 4. E.coli (basic cloning and plasmid production)
- 5. Plasmid vectors
- 6. CRISPR/Cas9

NIH Guidelines: III-D-3, III-D-4, III-E, III-F Highest BSL Level: BSL2 / ABSL2 (72h)

Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Basic Principles of Biosafety (BSL1) or Biosafety (BSL2), Bloodborne Pathogens, and Viral Vector Training. Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and documented.

Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are considered appropriate and acceptable.

IBC Action/Decision:

n/Decision: Approved with Stipulation

- The committee reviewed and unanimously approved the protocol subject to the adherence to the following special stipulations, along with all standard stipulations:
 - Protocol will be approved in the original form, with BSL2 /ABSL (72 hours) handling for replication-incompetent viral vectors. A request to downgrade the biosafety level was not approved.
 - The lab must clarify their BSL2 waste disposal procedures with BSO

Protocol:	25-315	C)e Novo	Expiration Da	te: 6/	/12/2025
Title:	Genome Engineering in Bacteria					
PI Name:	Wang					
Brief Descri	ption of Proje	ct: This project aims	to develop meth	ods to efficiently mov	ve large s	segments
		terial species and do es and/or mammaliar		ry of these large piec	es of DN	A into
delivery of [ONA between	ew Summary: This pro distinct organisms. T used for constructior	he study utilizes	the following biologi	ical mate	rials:
		tems include both RG		•		ie priage
Frequently	•	Cell Lines are used fo			I DNA. Al	l work is
Vertebrate	Animal Mode	els: Specific pathogen	-free animals ar	e used to assess deliv	ery of D	VA using
P1-like phag approved pi		ertebrate animals are	e housed in a spo	ecific pathogen-free f	acility un	der IACUC-
All bacterial	, animal, and	phage work was con	ducted in compl	ance with institution	al biosafe	ety and
animal ethics regulations. All regulatory approvals, including MTAs, were obtained for the relevant biological materials.						
NIH Guidelii	nes: III	-D-2, III-E, III-F	Highest BS	Level: BS	il2 / Absi	L1

Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Basic Principles of Biosafety (BSL1) or Biosafety (BSL2) and Bloodborne Pathogens Training. Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and documented.

Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are considered appropriate and acceptable.

IBC Action/De	cision: Approved pending Modifications
	ommittee reviewed and unanimously approved the protocol subject to the adherence to and and ard stipulations, as well as pending the following modifications:
• T	ne lab must clarify that transfers of BSL1-derived DNA includes only genes or gene
	usters for which the functions are known and these functions are not known to be ssociated with virulence or pathogenesis.
	ne IBC did not approve projects involving use of plant leaves or soil as described. The IBC

The IBC did not approve projects involving use of plant leaves or soil as described. The IBC also did not approve of experiments involving the transfer of BSL2-derived genes or gene clusters. These experiments must be removed from the protocol.

Protocol:	24-345	De Novo	Expiration Date:	6/12/2025	
Title:	Genome Engineerin	g in Bacteria			
PI Name:	Wang	-			
Brief Descri	otion of Project: This	project aims to create and u	use bacteria as a shuttle vec	tor to deliver	
DNA to euka	aryotic cells. To accon	nplish this, the bacteria con	taining the target DNA wou	ld have to be	
able to: i) Be	e phagocytized by a e	ukaryotic cell; ii) Escape the	specific anti-bacterial cellu	lar response	
		A from the bacterial cell into	-		
		roteins to integrate the DN	-		
		eered independently, teste	•		
	•	ully functional system. We w		•	
		nal cell lines, and mammalia			
-		nary: This submission is for	-		
		materials prior to transfer to	o 25-315 and subsequent p	rotocol closure.	
	rage includes:				
_	bacterial strains				
	nan, animal, and inse				
NIH Guidelin	,	· •			
-	• •	age only. Previously, the pro	•		
-		afety (BSL1) or Biosafety (BS		-	
		ocedures, and practices have	ve been reviewed by the IB	C and are	
	appropriate and acce				
IBC Action/I	Decision:	Approved			
🛠 The	committee reviewed	and unanimously approved	the protocol, extending th	e expiration	
date	date to 7/12/2025, allowing the lab to store materials, subject to the adherence to the				
star	dard stipulations. Aft	er the 1 month extension, t	he materials should be rem	oved from the	
lab	or destroyed.				

Caltech

Protocol:	25-393	New	Expiration Date:	New
Title:	Evolutiona	ry biochemistry of animal colors: leve	eraging natural history to ur	ncover novel
	protein fun	ctions		
PI Name:	Taboada			
Brief Descri	ption of Proj	ect: In our lab, we purify, sequence,	and identify proteins from r	nultiple
amphibian s	species to ch	aracterize their biophysical propertie	es and describe their novel f	unctions in the
creation of	colors and sig	gnaling in nature. We use an evolution	onary biochemistry approac	h to
resuscitate	ancestral pro	oteins by inferring their ancestral seq	uences and physically expre	essing them.
-		iew Summary: Work in the lab will ut	ilize the following biologica	l materials:
	L bacteria (ex	empt only)		
	mal model			
NIH Guideli	nes: Il	II-F Highest B	SL Level: BSL1	
-	•	equires the following biosafety traini		
		completed the required training wil	I not begin this work until a	ll appropriate
		eted and documented.		
	•	cilities, procedures, and practices hav	ve been reviewed by the IBC	Cand are
		and acceptable.		
IBC Action/	Decision:	Approved with Stipulation	1	
🛠 The	committee i	reviewed and unanimously approved	I the protocol subject to the	e adherence to
the	following sp	ecial stipulation, along with all stand	ard stipulations:	
•	Training mu	st be completed prior to work comm	encing.	

Protocol:	25-311-A1	Amendment	Expiration Date:	2/10/2028
Title:		on of invertebrate neural circuits	Expiration Bater	2, 10, 2020
PI Name:	Anderson			
		nis project uses genetic and chemi	cal approaches to mani	nulato noural
			• •	
	•	stigate the neural basis of aggressi	on, followed by analysis	sorbenavior
and brain a	ictivity.			
Biological N	Materials Review Su	immary: Biological materials used	include transgenic Dros	sophila with
targeted ge	ene expression and	chemical reagents for neural mani	ipulation, along with sta	andard
materials for	or brain imaging an	d behavioral analysis.		
NIH Guidel	ines: III-B, III	-D-4 Highest BSL L	evel: BSL2 /	ACL1
Training: Th	his protocol require	s the following biosafety trainings	: Basic Principles of Bios	safety (BSL1) or
Biosafety (I	BSL2) and Biologica	l Toxins. Personnel who have not o	completed the required	training will
, ,		propriate training has been compl	• •	•
		, procedures, and practices have b		
	appropriate and a	•		
IBC Action/		•		
IDC ACTION	Decision.	Approved		
🚸 The	e committee review	ed and unanimously approved the	e protocol subject to th	e adherence to

The committee reviewed and unanimously approved the protocol subject to the adherence to the standard stipulations.



D. Protocols - Expedited Review

Protocol:	25-281	De Novo	Expiration Date:	10/12/2025			
Title:	Transgenic Drosophi	ila					
PI Name:	Lois						
which cells interactions neurons are	Brief Description of Project: We use transgenic flies to design a system that will allow us to monitor which cells are in contact with other cells. The goal of the research is to be able to monitor the interactions between cells in animals. This research will be particularly useful to understand how neurons are connected to each other in the brain.						
genetically	Biological Materials Review Summary: To study questions related to brain organization we use genetically engineered flies (transgenics), and we use E. Coli to modify genes in their plasmids. These experiments are performed under ACL1 and BSL1 conditions.						
NIH Guideli	nes: III-D-4, III-	F Highest BSI	Level: BSL1				
Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Basic Principles of Biosafety (BSL1). Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and documented.							
Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are considered appropriate and acceptable.IBC Action/Decision:Chair Approved							

Protocol:	25-350	De Novo	Expiration Date:	6/12/2025				
Title:	Opto-electrical control of cell motility for integrated manipulation platform							
PI Name:	Hajimiri							
	Brief Description of Project: This project involved development of optoelectronic chip that will guide the ontogenetically enabled bacteria to swim in different pathways.							
U	Biological Materials Review Summary: K-12 Nonpathogenic E. coli with ontogenetically activated motility genes.							
NIH Guidelii	nes: III	-F Highest BSL I	Level: BSL1					
Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Basic Principles of Biosafety (BSL1). Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and documented.								
Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are considered appropriate and acceptable.								
IBC Action/I	Jecision:	Chair Approved						

Protocol:	25-349	De Novo	Expiration Date:	6/12/2025			
Title:	Developing new ge	enetic tools in the Hawaiian bobtail	squid, Euprymna scol	opes			
PI Name:	Ruby						
Brief Descrip	Brief Description of Project: Determine colonization factors that allow a symbiotic marine bacterium to						
specifically o	specifically colonize a squid light-emitting organ. The association initiates through a series of						
nutritional a	nd signaling interac	tions, and competition between st	rains involves bacteriu	m-host, and			
bacterium-bacterium interactions.							
Biological M	aterials Review Sum	nmary: This project investigates hos	st-microbe communica	ation pathways			



using the Hawaiian bobtail squid and marine bacterium Aliivibrio fischeri as a model. The squid are housed and bred in an IACUC approved facility and all bacteria are cultured under BSL-1 conditions. NIH Guidelines: III-D-4, III-F Highest BSL Level: BSL1 Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Basic Principles of Biosafety (BSL1). Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and documented. Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are considered appropriate and acceptable. IBC Action/Decision: Chair Approved

Protocol:	25-156		De Novo	Expiration Date:	7/29/2025		
Title:	Investigation of regeneration in Drosophila						
PI Name:	Goentoro						
Brief Descri	iption: This proto	ocol performs exp	eriments in the fr	uit fly to investigate tissu	e regeneration.		
Biological Materials Review Summary: This project aims to investigate mechanisms of wound healing and tissue regeneration. The study utilizes fly models (wild type and transgenic flies obtained from public repository) and microorganisms (cloning and probiotic agents). All work will be conducted under BSL1 conditions.							
NIH Guideli	nes: III-D	-4, III-E, III-F	Highest BSL	Level: BSL1/A	ACL1		
Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Basic Principles of Biosafety (BSL1). Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and documented.							
Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are considered appropriate and acceptable.							
IBC Action/	Decision:	Chair Appı	roved				

Protocol:	23-292-A2	Amendment	Expiration Date:	11/12/2026				
Title:	Bioelectronic devices for personalized medicine							
PI Name:	Gao							
Brief Descri	Brief Description of Project: This project involves analyzing human fecal fluid samples to evaluate the							
performanc	e of biosensors fo	r detecting gastrointestinal biomark	ers. All work is conduc	ted under BSL-				
2 conditions	s following institut	ional biosafety protocols.						
Biological N	1aterials Review S	ummary: Human stool samples colle	ected under IRB approv	val are				
processed in	processed into fecal fluid for in vitro sensor testing and biomarker analysis. No pathogens are cultured							
or propagat	or propagated in this study.							
NIH Guideli	nes: N/A	Highest BSL Le	evel: BSL2					
Training: Th	Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Biosafety (BSL2), Bloodborne							
Pathogens,	Pathogens, and Aerosol-Transmissible Diseases Training. Personnel who have not completed the							
required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and								
documented.								
Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are								
considered appropriate and acceptable.								
IBC Action/I	IBC Action/Decision: Chair Approved							

✤ W. Gao was recused from the discussion of this protocol.

Protocol:	24-296-A1	Ameno	dment	Expiration Date:	3/12/2027	
Title:	Mechanisms of int	eraction between g	ut microbiota and	the immune syste	m and nervous	
	system					
PI Name:	Mazmanian					
Brief Descri	ption of Project: Thi	s amendment incluc	les the removal of	RG2 bacteria that	fall under the	
Aerosol Tra	nsmissible Disease S	tandard.				
Biological N	1aterials Review Sun	nmary: Removal of F	RG2 bacteria that f	all under the Aero	sol	
Transmissib	ole Disease Standard					
NIH Guideli	nes: III-D, III-	E, III-F	Highest BSL Level:	BSL2		
Training: Th	nis protocol requires	the following biosat	ety trainings: Bios	afety (BSL2) and B	loodborne	
Pathogens Training. With this amendment, Aerosol Transmissible Diseases Training is no longer						
required. Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all						
appropriate training has been completed and documented.						
Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are						
considered appropriate and acceptable.						
IBC Action/	Decision:	BSO Approved				

Protocol:	23-370-A2	Amer	ndment	Expiration Date:	10/12/2026		
Title:	Culturing of bacteria from isolates and clinical samples						
PI Name:	Ismagilov						
Brief Description of Project: This amendment includes an additional variant/strain for items already approved.							
Biological Materials Review Summary: Work in the lab for this amendment will utilize the following biological materials: - RG2 bacteria							
NIH Guidelii	nes: III-D,	III-F	Highest BSL Lev	vel: BSL2 v practi	w/ BSL3 ces		
Training: This protocol requires the following biosafety trainings: Biosafety (BSL2), Bloodborne Pathogens, and Aerosol-Transmissible Diseases Training. Personnel who have not completed the required training will not begin this work until all appropriate training has been completed and documented.							
Review Summary: All facilities, procedures, and practices have been reviewed by the IBC and are considered appropriate and acceptable.							
IBC Action/Decision: BSO Approved ◆ R. Ismagilov was recused from the discussion of this protocol.							
▼ N. IS	Sinagilov was let	used from the discussi					

- E. Personnel/Admin Amendments
 - 22-271 Prober
 - 23-323 Glover
 - 22-355 Yang (CLOSED)

Caltech

- 23-365 Hampton (CLOSED)
- 4. Other Business
 - A. Noncompliance Update

The BSO updated the committee on a noncompliance incident discussed at the May meeting and reported that the NIH required no further action.

B. IBC Minutes

The Committee reviewed the revised IBC minutes template.

C. Biosafety Measures and Facility Staff Training Update

The BSO updated the committee that biosafety training for the facilities staff will be done in groups with the supervisor of each respective facility's staff taking the responsibility to ensure all their staff are trained. The BSO also provided a brief overview of the new training matrix.

Meeting adjourned at 3:54pm

Next Meeting – July 1, 2025

Approved by the IBC 7/1/25 T. Cheung